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The property on which Beaver Dam was built in 1829 was the site of enslavement of many Black
people through Emancipation.

Davidson Ownership (1829-1847)
William Lee Davidson II listed twenty-five enslaved persons in his household at Beaver Dam in the
1830 U. S. Census:

4 males under 10 7 males 10-23 4 females under 10 5 females 10-23
1 male 36-54 1 male 55-99 3 females 36-54

In the 1840 U. S. Census, the number of enslaved at Beaver Dam remained at twenty-five, suggesting
that Davidson maintained family units:

3 males under 10 4 males 10-23 5 females under 10 1 female 24-35
4 male 36-54 1 male 55-99 5 females 10-23 2 females 36-54
1 female 55-99

A November 1846 lawsuit filed by Davidson in Iredell County against Samuel B. Walls concerned
the “attachment levied on the following negroes, to wit: Levina, Mary and Ann.”!

Davidson engaged in sericulture in the 1840s during its American resurgence. It is unlikely that any
of the enslaved persons at Beaver Dam had experience in silk production and manufacture. As
noted by Nelson Klose,

In the South during the silk boom of the 1830's silk was produced and manufactured in
Georgia, Tennessee Mississippi, Louisiana, North and South Carolina. Large quantities of silk
thread, hosiery, and cloth were fabricated, but the business was not organized as large-scale
enterprise. In most cases individuals produced cocoons and manufactured the silk
themselves. Many of the garments woven then were long cherished as heirlooms by families
of the South.2

Davidson may have trained some of the enslaved in caring for the silkworms and mulberry trees.
However, most enslaved labor at Beaver Dam was likely utilized in producing cotton, corn, and other
established cash crops. According to Chalmers Davidson, Davidson “could not find a market that paid
enough to return his investment, so after one or two years he took his losses and abandoned the

1 Carolina Watchman, December 25, 1846.
2 Nelson Klose, “Sericulture in the United States,” Agricultural History 37, no. 4 (October 1963), 227.



project.”3 This may have led to Davidson’s relocation to Marengo County, Alabama around 1847-
1848, where he listed 38 enslaved persons in the 1850 census:

Male, age 40 Female, age 45 Female, age 16 Female, age 12
Female, age 9 Male, age 20 Female, age 67 Female, age 67
Male, age 41 Male, age 35 Female, age 34 Male, age 31
Female, age 31 Female, age 29 Female, age 26 Female, age 26
Female, age 23 Female, age 21 Male, age 16 Male, age 13
Male, age 10 Female, age 12 Male, age 9 Male, age 9
Female, age 7 Male, age 7 Male, age 6 Female, age 6
Female, age 5 Female, age 6 Male, age 3 Male, age 2
Female, age 21 Female, age 20 Female, age 1 Male, age 25

Male, age 2 months Male, age 2 months

It is likely that many of these enslaved people were brought from North Carolina. William Lee
Davidson died in Alabama in 1862, and his will bequeathed to his second wife Sarah enslaved persons
“Jim, Linda, Elenor, Aaron, his wife Martha, and her child Jim, Yellow Sarah, Black Harriet and her two
children Horace and John and her husband.”4 Davidson was intent on maintaining some form of the
family units of the people he enslaved—his will directed that the sale of any enslaved would "so far
as is practical in families, so that mother and small children be kept together as much as can
conveniently be done.” Additionally, three elderly enslaved women—Phebe, Rose, and Amy—were
to be provided for until their deaths.

Patterson Ownership (1847-1871)
Joseph Patterson purchased Beaver Dam from Davidson in 1847. The 1850 U. S. Census listed 25
enslaved persons in his household:

Male, age 50 Male, age 50 Male, age 40 Male, age 40
Male, age 20 Male, age 20 Male, age 15 Male, age 14
Male, age 12 Male, age 12 Male, age 7 Male, age 7
Male, age 3 Male, age 2 % Male, age 1 Female, age 35

Female, age 13
Female, age 3

Female, age 35
Female, age 6

Female, age 35
Female, age 12

Female, age 35
Female, age 12
Female, age 3 months

Joseph Patterson died in 1858. His personal property was sold at public sale on November 30, 1858.
Enslaved persons who were sold that day included Jane and her two children to Isaac Wilson; Darky
and child to William L. Henderson; Tilly and Mary to John Hunt; Lee to James Davis; Taylor to Calbe
White; and Frances and Dallas to ]. R. Gillespie. Also noted were the “return of Negroes belonging to
the estate” who included family unit Jorge, Harriet, and child, and Stokes, Amanda, and Swain.

3 Chalmers Davidson, Beaver Dam, National Register of Historic Places nomination form, 8-2.
4 [sabel Nowak, “The Beaver Dam Timeline,” in Maxime Lamoureux-St-Hilaire, ed., Historical and Community
Archaeology: The Enslaved of Beaver Dam (August 2021), 31.



Another group of ten enslaved people were listed as “John P. Patterson’s lot”: Tom, Caroline, Milos,
Joseph, Henry, Jim, Baxter, Fanny, Catherine, and Amzie.5

His widow Margaret Reid Patterson married James P. Henderson in August 1859. As her son John
Potts Patterson (1833-1903) would not reach majority age for another two years, the property was
rented to unnamed tenants for whom enslaved persons cannot be traced.

After Emancipation, several Black families resided near Beaver Dam as listed in the 1870 U. S. Census,
some of whom may have been formerly enslaved there. The subsequent household to James P.
Patterson, listed as household 61, was that of Lewell Powell, age 23, and his wife Mary, age 19. Both
were born in North Carolina, and Lewell worked as a farmhand. The next household (62), that of
Abram and Fannie Porter, were also Black farmers but all family members are listed as born in
South Carolina.6 Tilly Henderson (household 42), lived near William L. Henderson and may have
been the enslaved woman sold to John Hunt in 1858.7

Black persons with the surname Patterson lived in the Davidson area in 1870. Lenora Patterson,
age 13, worked as a domestic servant in the home of Margaret Henderson (household 81) in
Davidson.8 Patrick Patterson, age 17, is listed as the head of household 89 which included Manlius
Patterson, age 16 and likely his brother, and white farmer Walter B. Sloan, age 23.° Lee Patterson,
age 30, headed household 99, which consisted of wife Lucinda, age 28, and children Martha, age 14,
and Fannie, age 3.10

Stokes Patterson

Stokes Patterson, mentioned in the 1858 estate papers of Joseph Patterson, was the son of Mingo
Reid and Dilcy Reid. He had a brother, ]. S. Patterson, who married Latitia Byers in 1889.11 Recorded
as age 36 in the 1870 census, Stokes worked on a farm with his wife Mary Ann Smith, age 30. Also
in their household was Amzi Patterson, age 19, and Green Smith and Esther Smith, possibly Mary’s
younger siblings.12 Stokes married Mary, the daughter of Green Smith and Nancy Smith, on February
15, 1873, in Deweese Township, though it is apparent that they considered themselves informally
married in the 1870 census.!3

5 Joseph Patterson (1858), Mecklenburg County, North Carolina Estate Files, 1663-1979,
https://www.familysearch.org/ark: /61903 /1:1:KFSW-CB], accessed August 29, 2024.

61870 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 9.

71870 U.S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 6.

81870 U.S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 12.

91870 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 12.

10 1870 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 14.

117, S. Patterson and Latitia Byers, marriage license, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, September 16,
1889, https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-CSCN-FSKG-
X?view=index&personArk=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQP9R-NX]V&action=view, accessed
August 29, 2024.

121870 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 10.

13 Stokes Patterson and Mary A. Smith, marriage license, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, January 9,
1873, https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C91Z-
C7TS?view=index&personArk=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ28R-146F&action=view, accessed
August 29, 2024.
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After Emancipation, Stokes continued to work on the Patterson farm. John P. Patterson filed a
complaint with the Freedman’s Bureau against Stokes in June 1868, alleging that “Stokes refused to
comply with his contract and was otherwise conducting himself improperly.” An assigned umpire
appeared to have found in favor of Stokes, and the contact was ordered cancelled, and John was
requested to “make a settlement and allow Stokes $12 per month.”14

There are no deeds showing Stokes owning any land, but documents show he was a tenant farmer on
the Beaver Dam property. He borrowed $40.00 from James Dove in March 1877, payable on
November 1 with one bale of cotton weighing 450 pounds as collateral.15 An April 1884 agreement
with Rufus Barringer, who had purchased the former plantation from John P. Patterson in 1871,
outlined the heavy burden of tenancy on Mecklenburg County farmers. Payment was due on
December 1, 1884, on rent for 75 acres, $125 in advances, and an estimated $80 with interest in
commissions from December 1883, with interest set at 8%. As collateral was two gray horses, a two-
horse wagon and gear, and surplus crops of cotton after rent.16 Stokes also partnered with George
Byers to farm on additional Barringer land, as they signed an agreement in March 1884 for “a rent
for 1884 at $61.00 payable as stated and the arrears fixed and agreed to $115.00 and the advances
for 1884 estimated at $40.00 and only as furnished and the new amount to be renewed monthly.”17

To meet their debt obligations, extended family and hired labor worked with the Pattersons. In their
household in 1880 was Mary’s aunt Lucy Smith, their granddaughter Rosa Smith, nephew Ephraim
Smith, and his wife Mary Smith. Also living with the Pattersons were hired hands Adaline Potts, along
with her two-year-old daughter Minnie, and brothers Jim Smith and J. P. Smith who were likely
relatives.18 By fall 1887 Stokes moved to another farm in the Davidson area as Rufus Barringer
advertised for rent “the Stokes Patterson place two miles east of Davidson College.”19

Mary had died by February 1900, when he was issued a license to marry Jane “Jennie” Allison.20
Stokes and his new wife were renting a farm in Deweese Township in June. In the household were
her three young children and adopted daughter Mattie.2! He died on September 30, 1900.

14]. P. Patterson v. Stokes Patterson, June 13, 1868, Register of Complaints, Vol. 64, Records of the Field
Offices for the State of North Carolina, Bureau of Refugees, Freeman, and Abandoned Lands, 1865-1872,
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QSQ-G9ZP-RH4S?view=explore, accessed August 29, 2024.
15 Mecklenburg County Old Deed Book 16, Page 309.

16 Mecklenburg County Deed Book 40, Page 43.

17 Mecklenburg County Deed Book 40, Page 28.

18 1880 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 19.

19 Charlotte Observer, October 11, 1887.

20 Stokes Patterson and Jennie Allison, marriage license, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, February 6,
1900, https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-CSCN-F9B]-
3?view=index&personArk=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQP9]-FHK7&action=view, accessed
August 29, 2024.

211900 U. S. Census, Deweese Township, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, 17A.
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This report was written on May 30, 1976

1. Name and location of the property: The property known as Beaver Dam is located on N. C.
Highway 73, east of Davidson, N.C., in the northern portion of Mecklenburg County.

2. Name, address, and telephone number of the present owners and occupants of the
property: The present owner of the property are:

Dr. Chalmers Gaston Davidson
c/o Davidson College
Davidson, N.C. 28036
Telephone 892-8021 ext. 331

The present occupants of the property are:
Dr. and Mrs. Chalmers G. Davidson



Concord Rd.
Davidson, N.C. 28036

Telephone Unpublished

3. Representative photographs of the property: Photographs of the property are included in
this report.

4. A map depicting the location of the location of the property: This report contains a map
depicting the location of the location of the property.
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5. Current Deed Book Reference to the property: The most recent reference to this property
is found in Mecklenburg County Deed Book 9531 at Page 14. The Parcel Number of the
property is 00727206.

6. A brief historical sketch of the property: This report contains an historical sketch prepared
by Dr. Chalmers G. Davidson.

7. A brief architectural description of the property: This report contains a brief architectural
description of the property prepared by Jack O. Boyte, AlA.

8. Documentation of why and in what ways the property meets the criteria set forth in
NCGS 160A-399.4:

a. Historical and cultural significance:

The historical and cultural significance of the property known an Beaver Dam rents upon two
factors. First, the house has strong associative ties with events and individuals of local and
regional historical importance. It was erected by William Lee Davidson, 11, the son of General
William Lee Davidson who was killed in the battle of Cowan's Ford on the Catawba on February
1, 1780. Major John Davidson, a signer of the controversial Mecklenburg Declaration of
Independence, lived in the house for several years. It served as the location for the meeting of
the committee of the Concord Presbytery on May 13, 1835, which decided to locate nearby what
later became known an Davidson College. Second, the house has architectural significance as
one of the finer Federal Style plantation houses extant in Mecklenburg County.

b. Suitability for preservation and restoration: The house is in a state of excellent repair,
having been restored to serve as the residence of the present owner.

c. Educational value: The house has educational value as an example of restoration, as an
architecturally significant structure, and as a site of substantial associative historical value.

d. Cost of acquisition, restoration, maintenance or repair: The Commission has no intention
of purchasing this property. Nor is it aware of any intention of the present owner to sell. It
assumes that all costs associated with renovating and maintaining the structure will be paid by
the owner or subsequent owners of the property.

e. Possibilities for adaptive or alternative use of the property: The Commission concurs with
the present owner's use of the property as a residence.

f. Appraised Value: The current tax appraisal value of the structure is $41,750. The tax
appraisal value of the land is $7,380. The Commission is aware that designation of the property
would allow the owner to apply for a special tax classification.

g. The administrative and financial responsibility of any person or organization willing to
underwrite all or a portion of such costs: As indicated earlier, the Commission has no



intention of purchasing this property. Furthermore, the Commission assumes that all costs
associated with the structure will be met by whatever party now owns or will subsequently own
the property. Clearly, the present owner has demonstrated the capacity to met the expenses
associated with restoring the structure.

9. Documentation of why and in what ways the property meets the criteria for inclusion in
the National Register of Historic Places: The Commission judges that the property known as
Beaver Dam does meet the criteria of the National Register of Historic Places. Basic to the
Commission's judgment is its knowledge of the fact that the National Register of Historic Places
functions to identify properties of local and state historic significance. The Commission believes
that the property known as Beaver Dam is of local and regional historic significance and thereby
meets the criteria of the National Register of Historic Places.

10. Documentation of why and in what ways the property is of historical importance to
Charlotte and/or Mecklenburg County: As noted earlier the property known as Beaver Dam
is of local historic importance for two reasons. First, the house has strong associative ties with
events and individuals of local and regional historic importance. Second, the house has
architectural significance as one of the finer Federal Style plantation houses extant in
Mecklenburg County.
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Historical Overview

Dr. Chalmers G. Davidson

The historical significance of the 1829 house on Beaver Dam plantation derives from its
connection with the Revolutionary War and Davidson College. The house was built by William
Lee Davidson, 11, the son of General William Lee Davidson who was killed in the battle of
Cowan's Ford on the Catawba on February 1, 1780, attempting to slow the progress northward of
Lord Cornwallis. William Lee, I1, was only one month old at the time of his father's death. He
acquired the original acreage (451 acres) by purchase in 1808 (Mecklenburg Deed Book 19, p.
538) a part of which had been a grant from the King to his mother's uncle Robert Brevard. The
plantation was later expanded to 785 acres. Davidson's first home at this location was an
unclapboarded log house, traditionally three stories high. In September of 1829, according to
markings on the east chimney, he built the present house. On October 30, 1805, he had married
Elizabeth Davidson, the youngest daughter of Major John Davidson of Rural Hill plantation in
Mecklenburg County. No children were born from this union. Major John Davidson made his
final home with his daughter Betsy and son-in-law William Lee Davidson. He was the last
surviving "signer" of the Mecklenburg Declaration of Independence. When further evidence of
this controversial event was being collected in 1830, Major Davidson was called upon for
testimony. Then in his 95th year, Major Davidson dictated and signed a lucid account of the
events of fifty-five years previous stating that "I am confident that the Declaration of
Independence by the people of Mecklenburg was made public at least twelve months before that
of the Congress of the United States.”" The letter was dated "Beaver Dam, October 5, 1830" and
the original is now in the Mecklenburg Declaration MSS. in the Library of the University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill. Major John Davidson died at Beaver Dam on January 10, 1832,
and was taken back to the family burying-ground at Rural Hill for interment beside his wife.

Beaver Dam is also intimately connected with the founding of Davidson College. William Lee
Davidson, 11, was a Presbyterian elder and a member of the committee of Concord Presbytery
whose purpose it was to select a site for the *Manual Labour School” to be founded by the
Presbytery. At the meeting of this committee on May 13, 1835, at the home of "William Lee
Davidson, Esq., in north Mecklenburg ... at candlelight after solemn and special prayer to
Almighty God for the aid of his grace" they decided to purchase 469 acres from Mr. Davidson
for $1521. This tract was not a part of his Beaver Dam plantation but some two miles east of it,
lying partly in Mecklenburg and partly in Iredell County. As yet the "Manual Labour School”
had no name. At a later meeting of Presbytery, August 26, 1835, it was decided to name the
institution "Davidson College"

... as a tribute to the memory of that distinguished and excellent man, General William
Davidson, who in the ardor of patriotism, fearlessly contending for the liberty of his country, fell
(universally lamented) in the Battle of Cowan's Ford.



There is no recording of a deed of sale in the Mecklenburg or Iredell courthouses, and the
tradition is that the land was given by William Lee Davidson after the college was named for his
father. Whether true or not, there is a record of the gift of $2000 by William Lee Davidson for
the endowment of a professorship at Davidson College in 1839, so if he took the money
originally it is obvious that he later gave it back. Davidson was much interested in the infant
institution and served as one of the vice-presidents of its first Board of Trustees and as treasurer
of the college. There are many references to his activities in the minutes of the Board of Trustees
now preserved at the College. In his old age, he removed to the state of Alabama selling his
North Carolina property. He died in Alabama on November 13, 1862, and in his will left the
College eight thousand dollars, one thousand each, in addition, to the two literary societies, and
one fourth interest in his estate after the special legacies were paid. The Board of Trustees
adopted a testimonial of thanks for "his liberal pecuniary contributions and for many years of
personal service rendered to the institution while he resided in its vicinity and now for the
munificent bequest of which the board has just received official information."

William Lee Davidson invested heavily in the production of silk while operating his Beaver
Dam plantation. He planted mulberry trees and built silk houses. But the experiment was not a
financial success and he abandoned it when he removed from North Carolina to Alabama.
According to the Census of 1830, he was the owner of 25 slaves in Mecklenburg County. He
owned 65 in Alabama in 1860. In politics, he was an old line Whig and served as state senator
for Mecklenburg in 1818 but did not pursue a political career.

The most interesting account of the domestic life at Beaver Dam during the antebellum period
comes from the pen of Mrs. "Stonewall” Jackson who was a great niece of Elizabeth (Mrs. Wm.
Lee) Davidson and a frequent visitor. Mrs. Jackson's father was President Robert Hall Morrison
of the College.

Architectural Description

by Jack O. Boyte, A.L.A.

During the middle years of the Eighteenth Century an early North Mecklenburg settler, Robert
Brevard, received a land grant from the King of some 800 acres at the headwaters of Rocky
River and lying along the Salisbury Post Road just north of the present Cornelius. In 1808 a
large section of this land along Beaver Dam Creek was purchased by William Lee Davidson, I1.
Here this son and namesake of the renowned Revolutionary hero built a homestead for his bride
of three years, Betsy Davidson (his second cousin). The young couple’s first house was a simple
log structure said to be three stories high but probably two with a finished garret. For some
twenty years they lived in this log house as their fortunes improved. Finally, in 1829, they built a
new two story plantation manor house. This house stands today on a knoll beside the Concord



Road just outside the village of Davidson essentially as it was when first erected and still called
'‘Beaver Dam' after 150 years.

The main body of the house is a two story rectangular log structure facing south. Interior and
exterior finishes were smooth wood paneling and clapboard siding nailed to wood strips applied
to the log surfaces.

A reconstructed one story lean-to wing covers the full width at the rear and a balancing porch
with a shed roof spans the width of front. The front facade includes four bays on each floor. The
front entrance door occurs in the right center first floor bay. Original strap hinges have been
retained. The rear facade original balanced four windows on the second floor. At each gabled
end original hand made brick chimneys rise from stone bases to single shoulders over second
floor fireplaces. Above these shoulders the chimneys set out from the gable siding and extend to
corbelled caps high above the ridge. Brickwork in both chimneys is remarkably well preserved.
Laid in Flemish bond, the coursing shows typical queen closures at each corner. High in the
brickwork of the east chimney the date of original construction, Sept. 1829, is cast in clear relief
in one brick.

Exterior surfaces of the house were originally water sawn clapboard featuring fine hand beaded
lower edges. This siding has been replaced with new work, fabricated to precisely match the
original. Under the front porch roof, wall surfaces are covered with flush, tongue and grooved
siding all of which is original.

The house rests on large corner foundation stones 12 to 18 inches above the ground. Originally
open, the foundation walls have in recent years been filled in solidly with additional field stone,
original massive hand hewn joists supported both floors and the second floor ceiling.

Initially the roof covering was probably hand split shingles smoothed with a draw knife. These
have been replaced with new hand split cedar shakes. Windows on both floors were originally 9
over 9 light. These units have all been replaced with new sash closely matching the original. All
windows now have louvered wood blinds.

While the exterior of the house has been carefully reconditioned with close attention to original
materials, it is on the interior where one finds relatively undisturbed original construction with
remarkably preserved and restored hand crafted wood finish work.

Inside the six panel front entrance door a wide hall connects all first floor rooms and features a
carefully crafted open stair. The hall forms a wide foyer at the front with an original six panel
pine door at the rear. This door has recessed flat panels on the hall side and beaded panel edges
opposite. The hall a fine chair rail, molded crown mold and base. Wall and ceiling surfaces are
wide, flush pine boards.

From the foyer one enters a large parlor on the left through a reproduced six panel pine door
with original strap hinges. The parlor is dominated by simple yet skillfully detailed mantle.



Narrow paneled pilasters rise at each side to a shallow multi-mitered mantle shelf, with a molded
lip. A flat panel insert with beaded edges is centered over the fireplace opening.

Walls are all wide, smooth, tongue and grooved boards. At window stool height a molded chair
rail surrounds the room. Below this rail removal of later paint revealed original stenciling on all
four walls. Above a small crown mold the ceiling is wide boards, matching the walls. Door and
window trim consists of planted three inch casing edged with a molded back bank. Floors are
original six inch wide pine planks carefully cleaned and waxed. Molded base boards are applied
to lower wall surfaces. To the right (east side) of the entrance hall another six panel door opens
to a smaller dining room. This room also features a fine mantle similar to that in the parlor, but
with fluted pilasters and center panel. Elsewhere, this room is trimmed in a manner like the
parlor. To the left rear of the entrance hall the simply detailed stair rises in three runs to a wide
second floor landing at the front. This stair has four inch square chamfered newel posts and two
delicate, angular balusters on each tread.

A simple rounded rail with molded edges completes the balustrade. Under the stair an original
closet with a small two panel door retains many of the early interior characteristics including
aged pine surfaces, mortised and pegged shelving and exposed cut nail heads. At the rear of the
stair hall and the dining room doors open to the lean-to wing. This wing has been reconstructed.
However, records and tradition tell us that this wing contained two rooms opening from the rear
hall. There is evidence that each room had a side wall fireplace and secondary chimneys
occurred at the sides of the wing.

From the second floor stair landing an original low six panel door opens to the west into a large
bed chamber. As with the first floor rooms, the chamber is dominated by a large carefully
proportioned mantle. Chair rails and other trim are similar to those below. In this room two
windows face the front, two flank the fireplace on the side wall, and two face the rear. A smaller
bed chamber opens from the east side of the second floor hall. In this room the original fireplace
has been closed. Trim and finishes are later additions. One window to the front, two at the side,
and one at the rear provide light and ventilation here.

Beaver Dam is a vivid reminder of the earliest plantation days of Piedmont Carolina. The house
exhibits little sophistication if compared to coastal towns of the Federal Period. But, in the
context of place and time it was a fine house and represented a successful effort on the part of
William and Betsy Davidson to add elegance to their lives.

The site for Davidson College, 469 acres belonging to William Lee Davidson two miles west of
his resident plantation, was chosen by a committee of Concord Presbytery meeting in the living
room of the Beaver Dam place in 1835. The 469 acres, according to family tradition, was given
to the college by Davidson when the institution was named for his father.

During the years when the plantation flourished, William Lee and Betsy Davidson had a brick
walled garden to the rear ornamented with rows of boxwood which “exceeds anything of the
kind" to be seen according to the Charlotte Democrat of July 11, 1871. A rare feature of the



plantation was an attempt by Davidson to grow and market silk. Even now there are mulberry
trees here and there on the place to remind us of those days.

Title to the property passed through many hands over the years and finally in 1936 it was
acquired by collateral descendants of the first owners. In recent years the house and grounds
have been carefully restored and adapted for contemporary use. It represents an exceptional
example of adaptive use for a significant part of Mecklenburg architectural heritage.



